RFI - Conscientious objection to military service


1. What is the duration of the military service, and what is the duration of the alternative social civilian service?

Conscripts are required to serve up to 19 months of military service, cf. the Norwegian Act relating to conscription and service in the Armed Forces, etc. (Lov om verneplikt og tjeneste i Forsvaret m.m. (forsvarsloven)), section 18. However, basic military service are usually 12 months.


2. How was the human right to conscientious objection to military service first recognised? Which year and by which law/article of Constitution? 

In 1922, Norway got an amendment to the Military Penal Code on exemption from military service, and with this recognised the right to conscientious objection to military service. In 1965, Norway passed a new law recognising the right to conscientious objection to military service; the Act of 1965 relating to exemption from military service for reasons of personal conviction. 

Today the right to conscientious objection to military service is found in Chapter 4 of the Defence Law, forsvarsloven, and in Chapter 12 of the Norwegian Regulations relating to conscription and Home Guard Service (Forskrift om verneplikt og heimevernstjeneste (vernepliktsforskriften)).


3. Are all the conscripts officially informed about the human right to conscientious objection to military service, and how?

We do not brief our conscript candidates about conscientious objection specifically during our selection process. However, if during the selection process interview candidates request such information, we explain the process and refer them to the proper form. This guidance is also provided to active service members.
The information is also available at these internet pages:
· https://lovdata.no/dokument/NL/lov/2016-08-12-77/KAPITTEL_4#KAPITTEL_4 
· https://www.forsvaret.no/forstegangstjeneste/utsetting-fritak 


4. What is the procedure for a conscript to serve alternative social civilian service? Are there conscripts who are denied this human right? 
Conscientious objectors get an exemption from service in the military. Moreover, there is no alternative civilian service for conscientious objectors. The alternative social civilian service was abolished in Norway in 2012. 
The process of application for conscientious objector status is described in Chapter 4, sections 36-42 of forsvarsloven. The applicant must sign a declaration that he or she fulfils the law's conditions for exemption, cf. forsvarsloven section 35. Statements from a priest, teacher or others can be attached to the application, cf. vernepliktsforskriften section 69. 
While the application is being processed, the applicant must hand in his or her weapon and serve in positions which, to the extent necessary, take into account the conviction the applicant has stated as the basis for the application for exemption, cf. vernepliktsforskriften section 72, second paragraph.
The Armed Forces' decision in the case of exemption from service may be appealed to the Ministry of Justice and Public Security, cf. vernepliktsforskriften section 71. A conscript who has received a final rejection to the application for exemption may take legal action in the courts to have the decision tried. 
A conscript who has applied for an exemption shall not be drafted for service while the application is being processed, cf. answer under question 3. A conscript who has been exempt from service may also apply to have the decision on exemption revoked, cf. forsvarsloven section 43. Conscripts who return to the military after a revoked decision may be required to serve for the same duration as other conscripts. 
Applicants, who have had their applications approved, are granted exemption from serving in the Norwegian Armed Forces. Those who are approved may be ordered to serve in the Civil Defence.

5. Is the alternative social civilian service system purely civilian indeed, managed by a non-military authority/ministry? 

The alternative social civilian service for conscientious objectors was abolished in Norway in 2012. While in place (i.e. until 2012), social civilian service was under the jurisdiction of the Ministry of Justice and Public Security

6. What is the legal minimum age for conscription, and what is the legal minimum age for voluntary enlistment in peace time, in case of general/partial compulsory mobilization, and in war time?

Norwegian citizens who are eligible for service in the military have conscription from the year they turn 19, cf. forsvarsloven section 6.

There is also an extended conscription through voluntary service and training in the military, cf. forsvarsloven section 12. The provision covers those who voluntarily apply to serve or train in the military. The minimum age for voluntary enlistment is 18 years old. Those who receive training are, for example, vocational apprentices. 
From the age of 16 people may be admitted to the Home Guard, cf. forsvarsloven section 24. This currently applies to young people who are admitted to the Home Guard Youth. They may not enter into a contract that entails a duty to serve in the Home Guard until they have turned 19 years of age. In accordance with section 4 of forsvarsloven those under the age of 18 who serve in the military (the Home Guard Youth) shall not be given training in or participate in combat-related activities.
When Norway is at war, in the case of imminent threat of war, or the order for general mobilization is given, those under the age of 18 are immediately released from service.




7. How is the human right to conscientious objection recognised for the professional members of the military? 

If professional military personnel become conscientious objectors during their service, and thus wish to end their service contract, they are free to terminate their contract based on the regular rules of contract law and labour law.

The applicant is required to have a well-founded pacifist conviction. This means that the applicant must be against the use of armed force as a method of conflict resolution and find it fundamentally wrong that the country has a military defence and that others serve in the military. The applicant must be a conscientious objector to any wars and military action, regardless of Norway's alliances, military scenarios and the like. Hence, the objection towards the use of armed force has to be independent of the current situation or a particular war or military action.

A conscript who has applied for an exemption shall not be called up for service while the application is being processed, cf. forsvarsloven section 37. 

[bookmark: _GoBack]If the application is received after the conscript has been drafted or has started the service, the Armed Forces may maintain the draft and decide that the service shall continue until the application has been processed. The applicant may only be required to continue the service for up to four weeks. However, a conscript who has applied for an exemption from military service on the grounds of conscientious objection is not exempt from the duty to perform alternative service pursuant to forsvarsloven section 17, third paragraph. Examples of alternative service in accordance with section 17, third paragraph, are service to prevent and limit natural disasters or serious accidents, or guarding and securing objects and infrastructure. While the application is being processed, the applicant is not exempt from a duty to serve in war or in the case of an imminent threat of war, or when the order for general mobilization is given.


8. Are there any plans to suspend/abolish conscription in the near future?

No. Conscription is established as a principle in the Norwegian Constitution, and has been reaffirmed regularly through wide political consensus in the Norwegian parliament. 


